
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance, please contact Debbie Dedeaux at 225.774.5795 to 
describe the assistance that is necessary. 

City of Baker School Board  
Board Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, December 5, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 
School Board Office 

Joyce Burges, President – Presiding 
“The secret of change is to focus all of your energy, not on fighting the old, but on building the new.” –Socrates 

A. Meeting Commencement
1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Silent Meditation
4. Pledge of Allegiance

B. Welcome of Visitors
C. Recognitions

1. CNA partnership-Rosebud
2. 20-year employees
3. Brittany Dunn
4. Baker Chamber of Commerce Donation

D. Approval of Agenda (Action)
E. Action Items-The public may comment on Action Items. Public Comment is limited to 2 minutes per individual.

1. Consideration and Approval of Minutes from the School Board Meeting of November 7, 2023 and November 11, 
2023.

2. Consideration and Acceptance of Monthly Financial Reports including Budget to Actual Comparisons for the 
Period Ending October 31, 2023.

3. Consideration and Approval of Change Orders for the Baker High School Construction Project (Single Point of 
Entry).

4. Consideration and Approval of Superintendent Contract
F. Information Items

1. Superintendent's Report on Personnel
G. Announcements

1. Date of Next Meeting – January 16, 2024
H. Superintendent’s Report

1. Dr. Smothers Accountability Report
I. Adjournment (Action)



Move to approve the minutes from the School Board Meeting of 
November 7, 2023 and November 11, 2023.

Background Information:

Agenda Item:

The Board needs to approve the minutes from the November Board Meetings

Possible Motion: 

Attached Items: 
November 11, 2023 Minutes
November 7, 2023 Minutes

City of Baker School System
School Board Meeting
Tuesday, December 5, 2023

Type of Item:

Consideration and Approval of Minutes 

Action



 
         

City of Baker School Board Meeting 
November 7, 2023 

 
MINUTES 

 
The City of Baker School Board held a public meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 
November 7, 2023. 
 
President Burges called the meeting to order and explained to visitors the process for speaking 
on action agenda items is to request a comment card from Mrs. Debbie Dedeaux.  Write your 
name on the card as well as the number of the agenda item you wish to speak on and return the 
card to Mrs. Dedeaux.  She will bring the card up to the Board President at the appropriate time.  
Visitors will be allowed two (2) minutes to speak. 
 
President Burges welcomed all visitors to the meeting and referenced the quote at the top of the 
agenda, “Education is the most powerful weapon you can use to change the world.” Nelson 
Mandela. 
 
President Burges took roll call: 
 
 Perkins:  Present  
 Profit:     Present 
 Joseph:   Present 
 Butler:    Present 
 Burges:   Present 
 
President Burges announced there was a quorum and the meeting would proceed. 
 
Silent Meditation/Prayer was led by Ms. Butler followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. 
Willie Williams. 
 
The Board recognized the following: 
 

• The Baker High School Girls’ Volleyball Team for making it to the state playoffs. 
• The Park Ridge Girls’ Volleyball Team 
• The Baker High School Homecoming Court 
• The Baker Heights/Park Ridge Homecoming Court 

 
President Burges also recognized the Student Government Association (SGA) who had some 
members in attendance.  The SGA is under the leadership of Mr. Stewart, Ms. Broussard, Ms. 
McGee, and Ms. Haynes.  
 
On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to approve the agenda as 
presented.  Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler, Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 



 
 
 
City of Baker School Board Minutes 
November 7, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
Action Items: 
 
 

1. On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Mrs. Perkins, the Board voted to accept the 
monthly financial reports including budget to actual comparisons for the periods ending 
July 31, 2023, and August 31, 2023.  Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler, and Burges.  
Voting no:  Joseph. 
 

2. A motion was made by Mrs. Perkins and seconded by Mrs. Joseph to vote on each policy 
under Agenda Item #3 separately.  Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler, and Joseph.  
Voting no:  Burges.  The motion passed. 
 

a. Policy B-4 Officers of the Board 
Motion made by Mrs. Perkins to approve Policy B-4.   
Seconded by Mrs. Profit 
Voting yes:  Profit, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  Perkins, and Joseph. 
The motion passed. 

b. Policy B-11 School Board Meetings 
Motion was made by Ms. Butler to approve Policy B-1. 

  Seconded by Mrs. Perkins. 
  Voting yes:  Profit, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no: Perkins, and Joseph. 
  The motion passed. 
        c.  Policy B-17 Board Member Site Visits 
  Motion made by Ms. Butler to approve Policy B-11. 
  Seconded by Mrs. Profit. 
  Voting yes:  Profit, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  Perkins, and Joseph 
  The motion passed. 
        d.  2023-2024 Parental and Family Engagement Policy 

Motion was made by Ms. Butler to approve the 2023-2024 Family Engagement 
Policy.  Seconded by Mrs. Profit. 
Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler, Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
The motion passed. 

         e.  2023-2024 School-Parent Compact for: 
1. Baker Heights Elementary/Park Ridge Academic Magnet School 
2. Baker Middle/Park Ridge Academic Middle Magnet School 
3. Baker High School 

Motion was made by Ms. Butler to approve the School-Parent Compacts for    
Baker Heights Elementary/Park Ridge Academic Magnet School, Baker 
Middle/Park Ridge Academic Middle Magnet School, and Baker High School. 
Seconded by Mrs. Joseph. 
Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler, Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
The motion passed. 

 
City of Baker School Board Minutes 
November 7, 2023 



 
Page 3  
 
 
      4. On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Mrs. Joseph, the Board voted to table Item #4: 
          “Consideration and Approval of Change Order for the Baker High School Construction 
          Project (Single Point of Entry – Change Order #6).  Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler,      
          Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None.   
 

5.  On motion of Ms. Butler seconded by Mrs. Perkins, the Board voted to approve the 
     authorization to issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) for furniture and fixtures for 
     Baker High School Restoration and Renovation Project.  Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, 
     Butler, Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 
6.  On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to approve the 
     authorization to issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Project/Program management 
     to finish the Baker High School Construction Project and FEMA funding.  Voting yes: 
     Profit, Butler, Joseph, and Butler.  Voting no:  Perkins. 

  
Information Items: 
 

1. Superintendent’s Report on Personnel 
A report on all personnel actions was provided to the Board prior to the meeting. 
 

2. Committee of the Whole 
Many school boards around the state hold a Committee of the Whole meeting, which is a 
workshop proceeding the board meeting.  The purpose is to go over the agenda items and 
talk about them and ask questions.  This is usually done about a week ahead of the board 
meeting.  I just wanted to put this out there as an information item in case the Board 
wanted to think about doing this. 
 

3. Superintendent’s Search 
The Superintendent Search Consultant, Mrs. Renae Mitchell with Halo Solutions, 
provided an update on the Superintendent’s Search: 
 

• There were 34 applicants.  In going through all of the applications, only 14 met 
the qualifications.  Upon looking through those 14 applicants, only 4 had all of the 
qualifications the Board told me they were looking for, as well as the public. 

• All 4 finalists have or are eligible to receive their superintendent certification. 
• The 4 finalists will be interviewed by the Board here at the School Board Office 

on Saturday, November 11, 2023, beginning at 9:30 a.m. 
 

Announcements: 
 

1. Date of Next Meeting -- December 5, 2023 
 

2. Interviews of candidates for Superintendent -- Saturday, November 11, 2023 



 
City of Baker School Board Minutes 
November 7, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 
Superintendent’s Report 
 

1. Accountability Report 
Interim Superintendent Stroder suggested that because of the lateness of the meeting Dr. 
Smothers present her Accountability Report at the December 5th School Board Meeting. 
 

2. Facilities Update 
• We have purchased additional cameras at Baker Heights Elementary School, 

Baker High School, and the Park Ridge campuses.  We also have additional 
money to purchase additional cameras if we need to.  We have identified 
approximately 20 camera locations at the new high school.  We have funding 
through the Stronger Connections Grant and ESSER for that, as well as a single 
point of entry. 

 
• We are looking at remodeling the current high school campus (Baker Middle 

School) as well as the Park Ridge facilities.  Both of these remodels should be 
done or close to being done by the end of this year.  We are looking at door 
replacements at all 3 campuses by Thanksgiving. 

 
• One of the other things we are looking at purchasing with the Stronger 

Connections Grant is Raptor software.  The State of Louisiana has required all 
districts in Louisiana to implement a panic button by April of 2024.  The Raptor 
software is two-fold: (1) It’s visitor management software.  So, when visitors 
come onto the campus, they enter their information into the Raptor system, it does 
a quick background check, and lets us know if this is someone we should be 
concerned about or not.  (2) It has panic button capabilities.  What that means is 
that any staff member on that campus would have access to a panic button.  So, if 
there is an emergency, they could hit the panic button and immediately notify 
emergency services to be dispatched to the campus. 

 
• HVAC reconstruction/construction has been underway since summer.  We believe 

we have most of them up to date and running now.  We have discussed installing 
an HVAC unit in the gym at the current high school/middle school campus so the 
gym area would be cool. 

 
• I spoke with Jason (with Stuart Construction) today and the roof on the building at 

the Baker High School campus should be completed by December 1st.  I did 
receive a letter from the insurance company today, and they do believe that our 
policy will cover some of the roof as well as the track at the high school. 

 
President Burges announced the Board was having a Community Meeting on Wednesday, 
November 15, 2023, at the School Board Office beginning at 6:00 p.m. so the community can 
voice any questions or concerns they have. 



 
City of Baker School Board Minutes 
November 7, 2023 
Page 5 
 
 
Adjournment: 

On motion of Ms. Butler seconded by Mrs. Profit, the Board voted to adjourn at 7:41 
p.m.  Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Joseph, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 
 

Submitted by J. T. Stroder, Interim Secretary. 



 
         

City of Baker School Board Special Meeting 
November 11, 2023 

 
MINUTES 

 
The City of Baker School Board held a special meeting beginning at 9:30 a.m. on Saturday, 
November 11, 2023. 
 
President Burges called the meeting to order and took roll call: 
 
 Perkins:  Present  
 Profit:     Present 
 Butler:    Present 
 Joseph:   Present 
 Burges:  Present 
 
President Burges announced there was a quorum and the meeting would proceed. 
 
Silent Meditation/Prayer was led by Mrs. Burges followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by 
Mr. Rodney Craig. 
 
President Burges welcomed all visitors to the meeting. 
 
On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to approve the meeting 
agenda.  Voting yes:  Profit, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  Perkins, and Joseph. 
 
President Burges outlined the interview process to be followed: 
 

1. The Board will interview four (4) candidates recommended by Halo Solutions Search 
Consultant, Mrs. Renae Mitchell, for the position of Superintendent of the City of Baker 
School System.  The Board may meet in executive session for the interviews pursuant to 
LSA R.S. 42:17. The names of the candidates and the order in which they will be 
interviewed are as follows: 
 

a. Dr. Monica Battley-Fabre 
b. Mr. Hutcherson Hill 
c. Dr. Delarious Stewart 
d. Mr. J.T. Stroder 

 
2. During the interview process, each of the candidates will have the opportunity to provide 

the Board and audience with a 5-minute opening statement. 
3. After the opening statement, the Board will proceed to executive session to further 

discuss qualifications. 
4. Louisiana Revised Statute 42:17(a)(1), allows the Board to meet with each candidate in 

executive session.  This portion of the interview will not be open to the public. 
5. All four candidates have elected to proceed with the interview in executive session. 
6. Once the Board has completed the interview phase with each candidate in executive 

session, the Board will complete any discussion and return to open session. 



 
City of Baker School Board Minutes 
November 11, 2023 
Page 2 
 

 
7. Once in open session, the Board will consider and/or deliberate on the candidate to lead 

the City of Baker School System. 
 
Dr. Monica Battley-Fabre provided her 5-minute opening statement. 
 
President Burges asked for a motion to go into executive session to interview Dr. Battley-Fabre.  
She explained that, while in executive session no motions would be made or votes taken. 
 
On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to go into executive session.  
Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Joseph, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  None.  The motion passed. 
 
On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to return to open session.  
Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Joseph, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 
Mr. Hutcherson Hill provided his 5-minute opening statement. 
 
On motion of Ms. Butler seconded by Mrs. Profit, the Board voted to go into executive session.  
Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  Joseph.  The motion passed. 
 
On motion of Mrs. Profit seconded by Mrs. Butler, the Board voted to return to open session.  
Voting yes:  Perkins, Profit, Joseph, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  None. 
 
Dr. Delarious Stewart provided his 5-minute opening statement. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Profit to go into executive session.  The motion was seconded by 
Mrs. Butler. Voting yes:  Profit, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  Perkins, and Joseph. 
 
The motion failed for lack of a 2/3 majority vote.  Dr. Stewart’s interview proceeded in open 
session. 
 
Mr. J.T. Stroder provided his 5-minute opening statement. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Profit to go into executive session.  The motion was seconded by 
Ms. Butler.  Voting yes:  Profit, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  Perkins, and Joseph. 
 
The motion failed for lack of a 2/3 majority vote.  Mr. Stroder’s interview proceeded in open 
session. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Profit and seconded by Ms. Butler to appoint a candidate as 
Superintendent.   
 
A substitute motion was made by Mrs. Joseph and seconded by Mrs. Perkins to delay the 
appointment of a candidate until the board meeting of December 5, 2023. 



 
City of Baker School Board Minutes 
November 11, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 
A vote was taken on the substitute motion.  Voting yes:  Perkins, and Joseph.  Voting no:  Profit, 
Butler, and Burges.  The substitute motion failed. 
 
A vote was taken on the original motion.  Voting yes:  Profit, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  
Perkins, and Joseph.  The motion to appoint a candidate as Superintendent passed. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Butler and seconded by Mrs. Profit to appoint Mr. J.T. Stroder as 
Superintendent of the City of Baker School System.   
 
A substitute motion was made by Mrs. Perkins and seconded by Mrs. Joseph to appoint Dr. 
Delarious Stewart as Superintendent of the City of Baker School System. 
 
A vote was taken on the substitute motion.  Voting yes:  Perkins, and Joseph.  Voting no:  Profit, 
Butler, and Burges. The motion failed. 
 
A vote was taken on the original motion.  Voting yes:  Profit, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  
Perkins, and Joseph.  The motion to appoint Mr. J.T. Stroder as the Superintendent of the City of 
Baker School System passed. 
 
On motion by Mrs. Profit seconded by Ms. Butler, the Board voted to adjourn.  Voting yes: 
Profit, Joseph, Butler, and Burges.  Voting no:  None.  Absent:  Perkins. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



October 31, 2023 Monthly Financial Report

Background Information:

Agenda Item:

Mrs. Stewart will present the Monthly Financial Report including Budget to Actual 
Comparisons for the Period Ending October 31, 2023.

Attached Items: 

City of Baker School System
School Board Meeting
Tuesday, December 5, 2023

Type of Item:

Monthly Financial Report 

Action











Background Information:

Agenda Item:

The Construction team will present Change Orders to the board for approval. This 
Change order is for the single point of entry remodel.

Possible Motion: 

Attached Items: 

Move to Approve the Change Order Number 006.

City of Baker School System
School Board Meeting
Tuesday, December 5, 2023

Type of Item:

Construction Change Orders

Action

BHS Change Order 006





 

 

6126 Crestmount Dr.    ♦    Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809    ♦    Phone: 225.293.8650    ♦    Fax: 225.293.8651 

Quotat ion  
 

TO: Manning Architects DATE: 11/30/2023 

FROM: Jason Catlin QUOTE #: 057 

PROJECT: Baker High School Renovations and Additions 

DESCRIPTION 

OF CHANGES: Single Point of Entry Bldg. A  
 

 

Quotation: $99,264.00 
 

Attached is a copy of our estimate and breakdown. 

We will require 10 calendar days extension of contract time for this change if we receive 
your formal authorization to proceed within the next five calendar days.   

The cumulative effect of this and other changes may result in extended general conditions 
costs.  Therefore, we reserve the right to claim extended general conditions costs at a later 
date. 

The proposal is firm for five calendar days from the above quotation date. If Stuart receives 
this executed Proposal back after five calendar days from the above quotation date, then 
Stuart reserves the right to perform the work as provided for above, reject the approval of 
the expired proposal and, at Stuart’s discretion, submit a revised proposal.  

We have included all supporting documentation for your review. If this Proposal is 
acceptable, please execute the proposal at the bottom, return it to Stuart and prepare and 
forward to Stuart an AIA change order for the amount stated, including the time extension 
as provided above.  This proposal and all its attachments shall be part of any change order 
to our contract. Only work specifically described in this proposal and its attachments is 
included.  

 

By executing below, I agree to the terms of this Proposal and direct Stuart to commence the 
work described herein. 

Accepted By:    

Printed Name:        Jason Catlin 

Date:         
 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C9AB56D2-3073-4DF8-B125-FA970F445E2A

11/30/2023 | 9:11 AM CST



Project: Date: 11/29/2023

Architect:

Revision: S&C Quote #
57

DESCRIPTION QUAN UNIT LABOR MAT./SUB LABOR COST MAT./ SUB COST C LINE TOTAL REMARKS

Storefront & Wall at Reception 1 LS $0.00 $37,268.00 $0.00 $37,268.00 2 $37,268.00 Iberville

Added Door in Entry Storefront 1 LS $0.00 $4,372.00 $0.00 $4,372.00 2 $4,372.00 Iberville

Wall Framing and Drywall 1 LS $0.00 $11,786.62 $0.00 $11,786.62 2 $11,786.62 JDS

Drywall Finishing and Painting 1 LS $0.00 $3,400.00 $0.00 $3,400.00 2 $3,400.00 KBP

Electrical Changes 1 LS $0.00 $25,108.00 $0.00 $25,108.00 2 $25,108.00 AEC

HVAC Changes 1 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00 No Cost

0 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00

0 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00   

0 LS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $0.00   

$0.00 $81,934.62 $81,934.62

W. C. Code #5403 14.61% $0.00

15.93% $0.00

18.34% $0.00

48.88% ) 48.88%  

>>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

0.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

0.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

Direct Cost Subtotal  >>>>>>> $81,934.62 $81,934.62

3.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

1.75% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

2.50% >>>>>>>>>>> $3,049.61

4.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $4,879.37

5.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

Indirect Cost Subtotal  >>>>>>> $7,928.98 $7,928.98

=============

Subtotal      >>>>>>>>>>> $89,863.60 $89,863.60

General Liability Insurance 0.64% >>>>>>>>>>> $573.78

Builder's Risk Insurance 0.32% >>>>>>>>>>> $289.18

OCP Liability Insurance 0.00% >>>>>>>>>>> $0.00

P&P Bonds 1.50% >>>>>>>>>>> $1,347.95

$92,074.51

8.00% $6,554.77

8.00% $634.32

=============

TOTAL  QUOTATION  >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>$99,264.00

Required Number Days Extension of Time  >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>> 10 DAYS

Grand Subtotal  >>>>>>>>>>

Overhead & Profit on Subcontractor's Work ..................................................................

Overhead & Profit on General Contractor's Work ...................................................

Sales Tax on Rental Equipment ..................................................................

Small Tools - % of Material

Insurance on Equipment - % of Equipment

Safety Supplies - % of Labor / Sub

Clean Up - % of Labor / Sub

Drayage - % of Materials

Sales Tax on Material ..................................................................

Subtotal .................................................................................................................................................................................................

Insurance on Labor .......….........................................................

Taxes on Labor ...................................................................................................................................

Fringe Benefits on Labor  ........................................................................................................

(Total Ins, Taxes, Fringes on Labor  =   

Total Labor, Insurance on Labor, Fringes on Labor..........................................................................................

Stuart & Company

6126 Crestmount Drive  |  Baton Rouge, LA  70809  |  Phone: 225.293.8650  |  Fax: 225.293.8651 

Additions & Renovations to Baker High School
Manning Architects

Single Point of Entry Building A
$99,264.00

DocuSign Envelope ID: C9AB56D2-3073-4DF8-B125-FA970F445E2A



DocuSign Envelope ID: C9AB56D2-3073-4DF8-B125-FA970F445E2A



DocuSign Envelope ID: C9AB56D2-3073-4DF8-B125-FA970F445E2A



DocuSign Envelope ID: C9AB56D2-3073-4DF8-B125-FA970F445E2A



DocuSign Envelope ID: C9AB56D2-3073-4DF8-B125-FA970F445E2A



DocuSign Envelope ID: C9AB56D2-3073-4DF8-B125-FA970F445E2A



DocuSign Envelope ID: C9AB56D2-3073-4DF8-B125-FA970F445E2A



DocuSign Envelope ID: C9AB56D2-3073-4DF8-B125-FA970F445E2A



DocuSign Envelope ID: C9AB56D2-3073-4DF8-B125-FA970F445E2A



1140 SF

IBCA

CLASSROOM

1142

1529 SF

CORRIDOR

1CRD2

377 SF

CHAIR

STORAGE

1110

OFFICE OFFICE OFFICE

RECEPTION OPEN WORK 

AREA

ENTRY 

VESTIBULE

NEW INTERIOR 

STOREFRONT

REVISE NEW 

STOREFRONT FOR 

NEW EXTERIOR DOOR

NEW 5' WIDE RAMP AND 

LANDING WITH SINGLE RAIL 

HANDRAIL, NOTH SIDES

RECEPTION DESK 

WITH 4' SLIDING PASS 

THRU WINDOW

5' - 0" 11' - 5" 11' - 5" 14' - 7 1/2"

1
0

' 
- 

8
 3

/4
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

1
1

' 
- 

9
 1

/4
"

12' - 3 3/4" 17' - 4" 12' - 5 1/2"

BUILDING A -SINGLE POINT
OF ENTRY LAYOUT

10.13.23

rbertucci
Callout
S3AA,1

rbertucci
Callout
S3AA,1

rbertucci
Callout
STOREFRONT WILL NEED TO BE SMOKE RATEDCAN YOU PRICE FULL STOREFRONT AND AN ALTERNATE FOR GYP, WALL WITH ONLY 5' OF STOREFRONT INCLUDING STOREFRONT DOOR



 Superintendent Contract

Background Information:

Agenda Item:

The Board needs to consider and approve a Superintendent Contract to begin January 
1.

Possible Motion: 

Attached Items: 

City of Baker School System
School Board Meeting
Tuesday, December 5, 2023

Type of Item:

 Superintendent Contract

Action

Move to approve the  Superintendent Contract to begin January 1, 2024.



Administrative, Instructional and Support Staff Positions

December 5, 2023

I. Report of Non-Continuance of Employment

II. Report of Retirements

III. Report of Appointments

1. Evon Agustus- Full Time Food Service Technician, Effective 11/06/2023

2. Diashia Wilson- Full Time Sub Paraprofessional/Teacher, District-Wide, Effective 11/09/23

3. Javona Sanchez- Full Time Sub Teacher, District-Wide, Effective

4. Heather Leday- Full Time Para, Baker Heights, Effective 11/27/2023

IV. Report of Reassignments/Transfers

6. Dashea Mitchell- Full Time Receptionist, Baker Heights/Baker Middle, Effective 11/20/2023

V. Report of Sick Leave Request

1. Mrs. Juanita Gibson- Full Time Cafeteria Manager, Baker High, Effective 11/20/2023-
01/10/2024



Lisa Smothers, Ph.D., Supervisor of Accountability, Assessments, and Evaluations 

 

 

 

2023 Spring LEAP Data  
 

Number and Percent of Students at Each Achievement Level for 

Spring 2023 LEAP 2025 Grades 3-8 

 

 

 

Grade 

English Language Arts 

# of Advanced 
% of 

Advanced 
# of Mastery % of Mastery # of Basic % of Basic 

03 1 1% 19 26% 13 18% 

04 0 0% 10 15% 13 20% 

05 0 0% 5 9% 21 37% 

06 1 2% 8 15% 14 26% 

07 1 2 7 12% 8 13% 

08 1 1% 12 14% 34 41% 
 

      
 

      

Grade 

Mathematics 

# of Advanced 
% of 

Advanced 
# of Mastery % of Mastery # of Basic % of Basic 

03 0 0% 18 25% 18 25% 

04 0 0% 1 2% 13 20% 

05 0 0% 2 4% 9 16% 

06 0 0% 2 4% 9 17% 

07 1 2% 0 0% 11 18% 

08 0 0% 6 7% 12 14% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DEPARTMENT 
of ACCOUNTABILITY & ASSESSMENTS 

  

 

(225) 774-5795, Ext. 736  ●  City of Baker School Board Office ● 14750 Plank Road Baker, Louisiana 70714 

Mr. JT Stroder, Acting Superintendent 

I. What is the number and Percent of students who scored Basic or above by grade level in English/Language Arts 

and Mathematics (3rd – 8th)?  
 



Lisa Smothers, Ph.D., Supervisor of Accountability, Assessments, and Evaluations 

 

 

Grade 

English Language Arts 

# of 
Approaching 

Basic 

% of 
Approaching 

Basic 

# of 
Unsatisfactory 

% of 
Unsatisfactory 

03 15 21% 25 34% 

04 14 21% 29 44% 

05 15 26% 16 28% 

06 19 36% 11 21% 

07 12 20% 32 53% 

08 22 27% 14 17% 
 

    
 

    

Grade 

Mathematics 

# of 
Approaching 

Basic 

% of 
Approaching 

Basic 

# of 
Unsatisfactory 

% of 
Unsatisfactory 

03 16 22% 21 29% 

04 25 38% 27 41% 

05 18 32% 28 49% 

06 12 23% 30 57% 

07 30 50% 18 30% 

08 35 42% 30 36% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

II. What is the number and Percent of students who scored below basic by grade level in English/Language Arts and 

Mathematics (3rd – 8th)?  
 



Lisa Smothers, Ph.D., Supervisor of Accountability, Assessments, and Evaluations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3rd  

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

+9 
English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

 

+7 

Basic  

726 

Basic 

735 

Basic  

742 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

+22 
Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
 

-5 

Approaching Basic 

713 

Basic  

735 

Basic 

730 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  

Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 
Math: +7 ELA: -5 

 

 

4th 

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

+10 
English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

 

-12 

Basic  

737 

Basic  

747 

Basic  

735 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

+27 
Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
 

-21 

Approaching Basic 

713 

Basic  

740 

Approaching Basic 

719 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  
Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 

Math: -12 ELA: -21 

 

 

5th 

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

-6 
English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

 

+16 

Basic  

732 

Basic 

726 

Basic  

742 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

+4 
Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
 

-4 

Approaching Basic 

722 

Basic  

726 

Approaching Basic 

722 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  

Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 
Math: +16 ELA: -4 

 

 

6th 

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

 

+27 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

 

 

-17 
Basic  

725 

Mastery 

752 

Basic  

735 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

 

+26 

Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
 

 

-12 
Approaching Basic 

710 

Basic  

736 

Approaching Basic 

724 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  

Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 
Math: -17 ELA: -12 

  

CITY OF BAKER SCHOOL SYSTEM 

 Park Ridge Academic Magnet School - Grades: 3rd – 8th 

Three-Year Comparisons In School’s Scale Score Average 

Spring: 2021, 2022, and 2023 

III. Revised: What is the increase or decrease from Spring 2022 as compared to Spring 2023 LEAP results, 

by school in English/Language Arts and Mathematics?  

 
 



Lisa Smothers, Ph.D., Supervisor of Accountability, Assessments, and Evaluations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7th 

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

 

+13 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

 

 

+4 Basic  

737 

Mastery 

750 

Mastery  

754 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

 

+0 

 

Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
 

 

+11 
Basic 

725 

Basic  

725 

Basic 

736 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  

Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 
Math: +4 ELA: +11 

 

 

8th 

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

 

 

-19 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

 

 

 

+1 
Mastery  

753 

Basic 

734 

Basic  

735 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

-23 
Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
 

+11 

Basic 

730 

Approaching Basic  

707 

Approaching Basic 

718 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  
Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 

Math: +1 ELA: +11 

  

CITY OF BAKER SCHOOL SYSTEM 

 Park Ridge Academic Magnet School - Grades: 3rd – 8th 

Three-Year Comparisons In School’s Scale Score Average 

Spring: 2021, 2022, and 2023 

Excee
d

ed
 State A

verage
 



Lisa Smothers, Ph.D., Supervisor of Accountability, Assessments, and Evaluations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

3rd  

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

 

0 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

 

 

+12 
Approaching Basic  

701 

Approaching Basic  

701 

Approaching Basic  

713 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

+4 
Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
 

+14 

Approaching Basic 

701 

Approaching Basic  

705 

Approaching Basic  

719 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  

Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 
Math: +12 ELA: +14 

 

 

4th 

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

 

-8 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

 

 

+3 
Approaching Basic  

713 

Approaching Basic  

705 

Approaching Basic  

708 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

 

+4 

Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
 

 

-1 
Unsatisfactory 

695 

Unsatisfactory 

699 

Unsatisfactory 

698 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  

Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 
Math: +3 ELA: -1 

 

 

5th 

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

+5 
English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

 

-6 

Approaching Basic 

710 

Approaching Basic 

715 

Approaching Basic 

709 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

-10 
Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
 

+10 

Unsatisfactory 

699 

Unsatisfactory 

689 

Approaching Basic 

699 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  

Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 
Math: -6 ELA: +10 

  

CITY OF BAKER SCHOOL SYSTEM 

 Baker Heights Elementary School - Grades: 3rd – 5th 

Three-Year Comparisons In School’s Scale Score Average 

Spring: 2021, 2022, and 2023 



Lisa Smothers, Ph.D., Supervisor of Accountability, Assessments, and Evaluations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As Requested By: Board Member Linda Perkins, District 1 

August 2023 – September 2023 
 

 

 

 

 

6th 

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

-5 
English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

 

+9 

Approaching Basic 

711 

Approaching Basic 

706 

Approaching Basic 

715 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

-1 
Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
 

-3 

Unsatisfactory 

699 

Unsatisfactory 

698 

Unsatisfactory 

695 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  

Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 
Math: +9 ELA: -3 

 

 

7th  

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

+3 

 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

 

-10 

Approaching Basic 

712 

Approaching Basic 

715 

Approaching Basic 

705 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

+6 
Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
 

-7 

Approaching Basic 

706 

Approaching Basic 

712 

Approaching Basic 

705 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  

Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 
Math: -10 ELA: -7 

 

 

8th 

Grade 

 
 

English/Language Arts 

Spring 2021 

 English/Language Arts 

Spring 2022 

 

-5 
English/Language Arts 

Spring 2023 

+16 

Approaching Basic 

713 

Approaching Basic 

708 

Approaching Basic 

724 
Mathematics 

Spring 2021 
 Mathematics 

Spring 2022 
 

-4 
Mathematics 

Spring 2023 
+10 

Approaching Basic 

703 

Unsatisfactory 

699 

Approaching Basic 

709 
Scale Score Average Points Increased/Decreased as  
Compared from Spring 2022 & 2023 LEAP Results 

Math: +16 ELA: +10 

  

CITY OF BAKER SCHOOL SYSTEM 

 Baker Middle School - Grades: 6th – 8th 

Three-Year Comparisons In School’s Scale Score Average 

Spring: 2021, 2022, and 2023 


	12-05-2023  Board Agenda
	E.1 Board Meeting Minutes
	E.1a 2023-7-11.Board Minutes
	E.1b 2023-11-11.Board Minutes

	E.2 Monthly Financial Reports
	E.2a Financial Report Summaries October

	E.3 BHS Construction Change Orders
	E.4 Superintendent Contract
	E.4a Sample Baker Contract - edited

	Personnel report
	Accountablilty Report
	E.3b Baker High - Bldg A Single Point of Entry Layout_231013_edit (1).pdf
	Floor Plans (Floor Plan - Working)
	BUILDING A - NEW PLAN - NEW ENTRY LAYOUT





